SAMPLE INVESTIGATIVE REPORT


DOD/NAVY HOTLINE COMPLETION REPORT

18 August 1999

1.  NAME, RANK, AND/OR GRADE, TITLE, ORGANIZATION, AND TELEPHONE NUMBER/E-MAIL ADDRESS OF OFFICIAL(S) CONDUCTING THE INVESTIGATION
a.  Ms. Gray Navy, GS-13, Investigations Specialist, Tel: (301) 295-9018 or DSN 295-9018, e-mail: graynavy@us.navy.mil, Office of the Medical Inspector General

b.  Mr. John Hays, GS-12, Investigations Specialist, Tel: (301) 758-8912 or DSN 288-8912, e-mail: jhays@navair.navy.mil, Office of the Inspector General, COMNAVAIRSYSCOM

2.  HOTLINE CONTROL NUMBERS

MEDIG Hotline # 72033

3.  SCOPE OF INVESTIGATION
a.  Background
(1) Hotline Origin.  On 30 May 1999, the Department of Defense (DoD) Inspector General (IG) received a hotline complaint.  The complaint was subsequently forwarded to the Naval Inspector General (NAVINSGEN) who tasked Commander, Naval Air Systems Command (COMNAVAIRSYSCOM) with conducting the investigation on 8 June 1999.

(2) Summary of Complaints.  The complainant stated Ms. Sylvia Chase, Ms. Paula Collins and Ms. Marie Powell, the subjects, were on temporary duty (TDY) from 1-5 March 1999 while attending a conference in San Diego, California.  They were COMNAVAIRSYSCOM employees.  The complainant alleged the three women returned from San Diego on 4 March 1999, but falsely claimed on their travel vouchers that they were on TDY from 1 March through 5 March 1999.  Moreover, on 5 March 1999, the complainant alleged the three women did not report to work and did not take leave.  The caller stated that this practice is standard for Ms. Chase.  The caller further alleged that Ms. Chase did not attend the afternoon conference session on 3 March 1999, which she was required to attend.

(3) (Optional) Additional Information.  Our Preliminary Inquiry determined the subjects were authorized to proceed on TDY travel orders 1 March 1999 from their residences to San Diego, California, to attend the Space and Naval Warfare Systems Command (SPAWAR), Command Communication, Control, Capture and Intelligence (C4I) Conference.  The C4I Conference was scheduled from 2-4 March 1999 and they were authorized to return on 5 March 1999.  A search of the COMNAVAIRSYSCOM database indicated Ms. Chase was the subject of a 1997 investigation (COMNAVAIRSYSCOM case 970052) involving prohibited personnel practices (favoritism).  Allegations were not substantiated.  No previous complaints had been filed against the other two subjects.

b.  Allegations.  Upon review of the complaint and other documents provided by DoDIG, we have determined the following allegations are appropriate for an IG investigation. 

(1) First allegation/issue.  That Ms. Sylvia Chase, Ms. Paula Collins, and Ms. Marie Powell improperly submitted travel vouchers on 7 March 1999 for reimbursement for 5 vice 4 days of TDY expenses, in violation of 18 USC § 1001, Statements and General Entries; 31 USC § 3729, False Claims; and, Joint Travel Regulations (JTR), DoD Civilian Personnel, Chapter 2 – Transportation Modes, Accommodations, Transportation Requests, Baggage and Mileage Rates.

(2) Second allegation/issue.  That Ms. Sylvia Chase, Ms. Paula Collins, and Ms. Marie Powell improperly failed to take leave on 5 March 1999 although they were absent from work, in violation of COMNAVAIRSYSCOMINST 3342.2b, Employee Time and Attendance; 18 January 1997; and JTR, DoD Civilian Personnel, Chapter 2 – Transportation Modes, Accommodations, Transportation Requests, Baggage and Mileage Rates.

(3) Third allegation/issue.  That Ms. Sylvia Chase, Ms. Paula Collins, and Ms. Marie Powell improperly claimed per diem on their travel vouchers for 5 March 1999, when, in fact, they were absent from work, in violation of JTR, DoD Civilian Personnel, Chapter 2 – Transportation Modes, Accommodations, Transportation Requests, Baggage and Mileage Rates.  

(4) Fourth allegation/issue.  That Ms. Sylvia Chase improperly abused her official time by not attending a Working Group she was required to attend on the afternoon of 3 March 1999, in violation of DoD Instruction 5500.7-R, Joint Ethics Regulation (JER), Chapter 2, Use of official time.

(5) Fifth allegation/issue (developed during the investigation).  That Ms. Chase returned from San Diego to Dulles vice Reagan-National Airport and incurred an additional cost for the flight change, fare increase, and ground transportation at government expense, for which she improperly claimed reimbursement on her travel voucher dated 7 March 1999, in violation of JTR, DoD Civilian Personnel, Chapter 2 – Transportation Modes, Accommodations, Transportation Requests, Baggage and Mileage Rates.  

(6) Sixth allegation/issue (developed during the investigation).  That Ms. Chase was improperly credited vice charged 8 hours of compensatory time on 10 March 1999, in violation of COMNAVAIRSYSCOMINST 3342.2b, Employee Time and Attendance, 18 January 1997.

c.  Interviews and Documents
(1) Interviews conducted.  (All interviews conducted in person unless otherwise noted.)



(a) Ms. Sylvia Chase (subject), COMNAVAIRSYSCOM Deputy Program Manager, PMA 277, GS-14

(b) Ms. Paula Collins (subject), COMNAVAIRSYSCOM Level II Team Leader, PMA 277, GS-13

(c) Ms. Marie Powell (subject), COMNAVAIRSYSCOM Program Analyst, PMA 277, GS-11

(d) Ms. Nancy Fowler, Office of the Deputy, Under Secretary of the Navy (ODASN), Equal Employment Opportunity Department (Telephone Interview/e-mail)

(e) Mr. Bill Garst, Personnel Management Specialist, COMNAVAIRSYSCOM
(f) Mr. Taylor Rutkowski, COMNAVAIRSYSCOM Program Manager, PMA 277

(g) Ms. Lisa Ponds, Scheduled Airlines Travel Office (SATO)

(h) Ms. Cheryl Overall, COMNAVAIRSYSCOM Payroll Technician

(i) Ms. Rose Evans, Personnel Support Detachment (PSD), Travel Claims Clerk

(j) Mr. Randall Lopez, Conference Chairperson and Panel Moderator (Telephone Interview)

(k) Ms. Armandina Sanchez, Conference Attendee 

(l) Mr. Toti Papas, Conference Attendee 

(m) Mrs. Joyce Cranston, Conference Attendee (Telephone Interview)

(n) Ms. Kathy Conaway, timekeeper, COMNAVAIRSYSCOM

(2) Documents reviewed
(a) DoD 4500.9-R, Defense Transportation Regulation, Part I, Passenger Movement, March 1998

(b) 31 USC § 3729, False Claims

(c) 18 USC § 1001, Statements and general entries

(d) Joint Travel Regulations, Volume 2 (2 JTR)

(e) Joint Ethics Regulation (JER), Chapter 2 

(f) COMNAVAIRSYSCOMINST 3342.24b, Employee Time and Attendance, 18 Jan 1997

(g) Timecards for Ms. Sylvia Chase, Ms. Paula Collins and Ms. Marie Powell for the periods 21 February through 6 March and 7 March through 20 March 1999

(h) Ms. Sylvia Chase’s travel order (#67895) dated 23 February 1999 and related travel voucher dated 7 March 1999, receipts/attachments and Defense Finance and Accounting System (DFAS) Travel Voucher Summary

(i) Ms. Paula Collins’ travel order (#67901) dated 23 February 1999 and related travel voucher dated 7 March 1999, receipts/attachments and DFAS Travel Voucher Summary

(j) Ms. Marie Powell’s travel order (#67902) dated 23 February 1999 and related travel voucher dated 7 March 1999, receipts/attachments and DFAS Travel Voucher Summary

(k) Ms. Nancy Fowler, ODASN, e-mail of June 28, 1999, at 3:39 PM

(l) Ms. Nancy Fowler, ODASN, e-mail of July 6, 1999, at 7:45

(m) List of Conference attendees

(n) Conference Schedule of Events and Presentations

(o) NAVCOMPT Form 2282, Overtime/Compensatory Time Request and Authorization

(p) Privacy Act statements

d.  Findings

(1) First allegation/issue.  That Ms. Sylvia Chase, Ms. Paula Collins, and Ms. Marie Powell improperly submitted travel vouchers on 7 March 1999 for reimbursement for 5 vice 4 days of TDY expenses, in violation of 18 USC § 1001, Statements and General Entries; 31 USC § 3729, False Claims; and, Joint Travel Regulations (JTR), DoD Civilian Personnel, Chapter 2 – Transportation Modes, Accommodations, Transportation Requests, Baggage and Mileage Rates.

(a) Facts
1.  The subjects’ travel orders showed they were authorized to depart their place of residence on 1 March 1999 to attend a C4I conference in San Diego, California.  Their authorized return date was 5 March 1999.

2.  The subjects provided the following information:  The purpose of their travel to San Diego was to participate in the C4I Conference.  They departed from Reagan-National Airport on 1 March, attended the conference from 2-4 March, and were scheduled to return to Reagan-National Airport on 5 March 1999.  They stated that after the conference ended on 4 March, they went out to dinner and decided to leave San Diego later that night.  They checked out of the Admiral Kidd Inn, proceeded to the airport and returned their rental car.  Ms. Collins and Ms. Powell returned to Reagan-National Airport while Ms. Chase returned to Dulles Airport early in the morning on 5 March 1999.

3.  Their travel vouchers showed they departed their residences on 1 March 1999 and returned on 5 March 1999.  They did not specify their departure and return times; these blocks were left blank on their travel vouchers.  Their receipts for the Admiral Kidd Inn in San Diego showed all three checked out at approximately 2100 hours on 4 March 1999.  Ms. Collins’ rental car receipt showed the car was returned to Thrifty Car Rental in San Diego at 2121 hours on 4 March 1999.  We reviewed Ms. Collins' and Ms. Powell's SATO flight itinerary, which indicated a San Diego departure time of 2210, 4 March 1999, with a Reagan-National Airport arrival time of 0828, 5 March 1999.  Ms. Chase's itinerary indicated a San Diego departure time of 2230, 4 March 1999, with a Dulles Airport arrival time of 0615, 5 March 1999. 

4.  Joint Travel Regulations, Volume 2, (2 JTR) DoD Civilian Personnel, effective 1 June 2000, Chapter 2 – Transportation Modes, Accommodations, Transportation Requests, Baggage and Mileage Rates, § C4563F states, in part, "When return travel is by an authorized mode on which sleeping accommodations are not available, the constructive date of departure may be the morning of the day following TAD completion.  An employee is not expected to select a schedule that requires boarding or leaving a carrier between 2400 and 0600..."  

5.  2 JTR § C1058B1 states, in part, "... a.  The travel order establishes when travel status starts and ends; b.  Ordinarily, an employee on official travel is not required to travel during unreasonable hours at night; c.  When night travel is required, the only acceptable sleeping accommodations are:  1.  ship staterooms, and, 2.  train sleeping cars.  NOTE:  Reclining seats on planes, trains, or buses do not constitute acceptable sleeping accommodations." 

6.  2 JTR § C1058B3 states "Travel should be scheduled so an employee travels during regular working hours.  To prevent travel during off-duty hours it is not unreasonable for an employee to ... depart from the TDY station the morning after completing a TDY assignment, provided the employee is not required to be at the Permanent Duty Station (PDS) that morning."

7.  Ms. Nancy Fowler, Office of the Deputy Assistant Secretary of the Navy (ODASN), stated in her July 6, 1999 e-mail, "...if the employees traveled back on the 'red eye' on 4-5 March, they were not required to report to work since it is considered an official day of travel...."  

8.  18 USC, Crimes and Criminal Procedures, Chapter 47, Fraud and False Statements, § 1001, Statements and General Entries, states:  

"(a) Whoever, in any matter within the jurisdiction of the executive, legislative, or judicial branch of the Government of the United States, knowingly and willfully;

(1) falsifies, conceals, or covers up by any trick, scheme, or device a material fact;

(2) makes any materially false, fictitious, or fraudulent statement or representation; or,

(3) makes or uses any false writing or document knowing the same to contain any materially false, fictitious, or fraudulent statement or entry; shall be fined under this title or imprisoned not more than 5 years, or both." 

9.  31 USC, Money and Finance, Chapter 37, Claims, § 3729, False Claims, states:  

"(a) Liability for Certain Acts. Any person who, 

(1) knowingly presents, or causes to be presented, to an officer or employee of the United States Government or a member of the Armed Forces of the United States a false or fraudulent claim for payment or approval; 

(2) conspires to defraud the Government by getting a false or fraudulent claim allowed or paid; is liable to the United States Government for a civil penalty of not less than $5,000 and not more than $10,000, plus 3 times the amount of damages...."

(b) Discussion

1.  2 JTR §§ C4563F, C1058B1, and C1058B3 do not require personnel on TDY to travel during unreasonable hours at night (2400 to 0600).  However, if they elect to do so, and travel on a mode of transportation with no sleeping accommodations, they are not required to report to work on the day of travel (5 March).  By definition, an airplane does not have suitable sleeping accommodations.  Ms. Nancy Fowler, ODASN, concurred with our interpretation and stated if the employees returned from TDY after midnight on 4 March, they did not have to report to work on 5 March.  

2.  The subjects were in compliance with 2 JTR.  They were not required to report to work on 5 March since they traveled on a mode of transportation that did not afford them appropriate sleeping accommodations.  

3.  We concluded Ms. Collins, Ms. Chase and Ms. Powell were entitled to reimbursement for 5 days of TDY expenses, since 5 March is considered a workday and not a day of leave.  As such, they did not make false statements or claims regarding their absence from work and did not violate 18 USC or 31 USC.    

(c) Conclusion.  Based on the evidence, the allegation that Ms. Sylvia Chase, Ms. Paula Collins, and Ms. Marie Powell improperly claimed reimbursement for 5 vice 4 days of TDY expenses, is unsubstantiated.

(d) Recommendations.  None.

(2) Second allegation/issue.  That Ms. Sylvia Chase, Ms. Paula Collins, and Ms. Marie Powell improperly failed to take leave on 5 March 1999 although they were absent from work, in violation of COMNAVAIRSYSCOMINST 3342.2b, Employee Time and Attendance; 18 January 1997; and JTR, DoD Civilian Personnel, Chapter 2 – Transportation Modes, Accommodations, Transportation Requests, Baggage and Mileage Rates.

(a) Facts   

1.  Travel orders and related documents, timecards, and testimony verified the subjects were authorized TDY and travel on 5 March 1999 (see Allegation 1, Facts).

2.  Timecards and testimony verified the subjects did not report to work and did not take leave on 5 March 1999.

3.  COMNAVAIRSYSCOMINST 3342.2b requires employees to work 80 hours per pay cycle and take leave if absent from work.

4.  Nancy Fowler, ODASN, stated in her July 6, 1999 e-mail, "...JTR § 1058B states employees should be in a duty status to travel.  If travel is during off-duty hours, then no more than one additional day should be allowed."

(b) Discussion  

1.  Although the subjects arrived in Virginia in the early morning hours of 5 March 1999, under 2 JTR §§ C4563F, C1058B1, and C1058B3 (as discussed in Allegation 1, Discussion) they were not required to report to work or take leave that day.  Ms. Nancy Fowler, ODASN, concurred with this conclusion.

2.  We concluded that 5 March was appropriately considered as a workday and not a day of leave.  As such, the subjects did not violate 2 JTR or COMNAVAIRSYSCOMINST 3342.2b.

(c) Conclusion.  Based on the evidence, the allegation that Ms. Sylvia Chase, Ms. Paula Collins, and Ms. Marie Powell improperly failed to take leave on 5 March 1999 although they were absent from work, is unsubstantiated.

(d) Recommendations.  None.

(3) Third allegation/issue.  That Ms. Sylvia Chase, Ms. Paula Collins, and Ms. Marie Powell improperly claimed per diem on their travel vouchers for 5 March 1999, when, in fact, they were absent from work, in violation of JTR, DoD Civilian Personnel, Chapter 2 – Transportation Modes, Accommodations, Transportation Requests, Baggage and Mileage Rates.

(a) Facts
1.  Travel orders and related documents, timecards, and testimony verified the subjects were authorized TDY and travel on 5 March 1999 (see Allegation 1, Facts).  

2.  Joint Travel Regulations, Volume 2, (2 JTR) DoD Civilian Personnel, effective 1 Aug 1998, Chapter 2 – Transportation Modes, Accommodations, Transportation Requests, Baggage and Mileage Rates, § C4553D2c(3) states, in part, "...for the day travel ends (day traveler returns to the Permanent Duty Station) PDS, home, or other authorized point), the per diem allowance is the Meals and Incidental Expenses (M&IE) rate applicable to the last TDY or authorized delay point..."

3.  2 JTR § C4553D2e states, "...the applicable M&IE rate prescribed in Appendices B and D, is authorized at a flat 75% on the day of departure from, and the day of return to, the PDS in connection with TDY..."

4.  Ms. Nancy Fowler, ODASN, stated in her June 28, 1999, e-mail, "The employees are authorized 75% of the M&IE on Monday, 1 March, and Friday, 5 March (days of travel).  Per diem began on the day they left their residences (1 March) and ended on the day they returned to their residences (5 March).  Also, their per diem is determined by their travel status at midnight in accordance with JTR § 1058B, which states employees should be in a duty status to travel.  As such, the three employees are authorized per diem on 5 March since they were on official orders."

5.  A review of the subjects' DFAS Travel Voucher Summaries showed they claimed and were reimbursed 75% of the M&IE rate for their travel on 1 and 5 March.  The subjects received full per diem for 2-4 March.

6.  COMNAVAIRSYSCOMINST 3342.2b requires employees to work 80 hours per pay cycle and take leave if absent from work.

7.  Timecards and testimony verified the subjects were not on leave on 5 March 1999.

(b) Discussion

1.  2 JTR §§ C4553D2e and C4553D2c(3) authorized the three subjects reimbursement at the rate of 75% M&IE on the day of departure and the day of return to their duty station.  Ms. Nancy Fowler, ODASN, agreed that the employees should be compensated 75% of the M&IE rate on Monday, 1 March, and Friday, 5 March (days of travel).  

2.  We concluded, in accordance with 2 JTR, the subjects were entitled to reimbursement at the rate of 75% M&IE (or the full amount employees are entitled to receive for partial travel days) on 5 March 1999 because they were on official orders and not on leave.  As such, the subjects did not violate 2 JTR or COMNAVAIRSYSCOMINST 3342.2b.

(c) Conclusion.  Based on the evidence, the allegation that Ms. Sylvia Chase, Ms. Paula Collins, and Ms. Marie Powell improperly claimed per diem for 5 March when, in fact, they were absent from work, is unsubstantiated.

(d) Recommendations.  None.

(4) Fourth allegation/issue.  That Ms. Sylvia Chase improperly abused her official time by not attending a Working Group she was required to attend on the afternoon of 3 March 1999, in violation of DoD Instruction 5500.7-R, Joint Ethics Regulation (JER), Chapter 2, Use of official time.

(a) Facts

1.  JER § 2635.705 states that an employee shall use official time in an honest effort to perform official duties.

2.  The afternoon session of the conference on 3 March 1999 consisted of three working groups.  Each group was scheduled for a presentation at 1300, followed by a panel discussion ending at 1600.  The Conference Schedule of Events and Presentations listed Ms. Chase as a panel participant for the C4I Network Users Working Group.  

3.  Mr. Taylor Rutkowski, Ms. Chase’s supervisor, stated: Approximately one month prior to the conference date, Ms. Chase submitted travel requests for herself, Ms. Collins and Ms. Powell.  Accompanying the requests was a draft schedule and conference agenda Ms. Chase had received via e-mail.  He and Ms. Chase discussed the schedule/agenda and agreed that the three women would attend the conference; Ms. Chase and Ms. Collins would participate in the C4I Network Users Working Group; and, that Ms. Powell would participate in the Research and Development Working Group. 

4.  Ms. Armandina Sanchez and Mr. Toti Papas, conference attendees, stated: On 3 March 1999, the morning session of the conference ended at or near 1130 as scheduled.  They and a number of other conference participants drove to a nearby restaurant for lunch.  There they saw Ms. Chase having lunch with Ms. Collins and another person unknown to them.  Shortly after 1230, Ms. Collins approached them and requested a ride back to the conference.  She appeared annoyed.  When asked if Ms. Chase also needed transportation, she replied that Ms. Chase had a car, but questioned whether Ms. Chase would be in any condition to drive it.  Ms. Sanchez and Mr. Papas observed the waitress bringing a margarita to Ms. Chase's table and removing what appeared to be an empty glass.  They left the restaurant at about 1235 and drove Ms. Collins back to the Conference Center and arrived at approximately 1255.  They estimated the trip took approximately 20 minutes, including time to park and walk into the Center.

5.  Mr. Randall Lopez, the Conference Chairperson and Panel Moderator for the C4I Network Users Working Group, stated: He was delayed in reporting to his working group by the need to "round up" several conference participants who were conversing in the lobby/refreshment area past the 1300 start time.  Lighting was dimmed for the presentation so he did not notice whether Ms. Chase was seated when he entered the room.  He was certain she was not among the stragglers who "trickled in" around 1310.  He recalled that sometime during the presentation, around 1400, one of the attendees asked a question.  He looked for Ms. Chase and called upon her for assistance to answer the question, but she was not in the room.  During the presentation, he was vaguely aware of a few attendees entering and leaving the room, possibly to use the facilities or refresh coffee cups, but he did not notice whether Ms. Chase was one of these people.  He stated that following the ten-minute break, around 1430; he remembered Ms. Chase was definitely seated at the panelists’ table.  He did not note anything unusual about her behavior.

6.  Ms. Collins stated:  On 3 March 1999, she and Ms. Chase drove to a nearby restaurant to meet Ms. Chase’s friend, Mr. Roy Martin, and some other conference attendees for lunch.  She, Ms. Chase, and Mr. Martin had a margarita with lunch.  Ms. Chase and Mr. Martin ordered another margarita, but she did not.  She told them she would catch a ride back with another conference attendee so she would have time to make some phone calls before the afternoon session began.  Ms. Collins returned with Mr. Papas.  She recalled Ms. Chase was definitely at the afternoon session, but she could not recall when she arrived.  She did not notice who was seated next to or near Ms. Chase.  She had no recall of commenting on Ms. Chase’s ability to drive back to the conference.

7.  Mrs. Joyce Cranston, a conference participant in the C4I Network Users Working Group, stated: She was seated next to the door, but paid very little attention to who was entering or leaving during the first hour or so of the Working Group presentation.  She recalled Mr. Lopez asking for Ms. Chase’s assistance in response to a question approximately an hour into the presentation, but she did not hear Ms. Chase respond.  She was quite certain that Ms. Chase did not enter the room between the time Mr. Lopez attempted to call on her and the break.  She stated that Ms. Chase was seated at the panelists’ table when she returned from the break.  

8.  Ms. Chase, the subject, stated:  She had arranged a lunch meeting on 3 March 1999 with Mr. Martin, who lived in the local area and invited Ms. Collins to join them.  While she did have one drink, perhaps two with lunch, she adamantly stated that she was in no way impaired; however, she conceded her recollection of the afternoon events was not entirely clear.  She may have been a few minutes late to the Working Group, but she was present for most of the afternoon.  She recalled leaving the room sometime during the presentation to go to the ladies room, but returning promptly.  She could not recall who was sitting next to or near her. 

9.  Mr. Roy Martin, a civilian (non-government) friend, had lunch with Ms. Chase and Ms. Collins on 3 March 1999.  He declined to be interviewed.

(b) Discussion

1.  Ms. Sanchez and Mr. Pappas remember seeing Ms. Chase order a margarita during lunch at around 1235 on 3 March.  Ms. Collins confirmed the drink order.  The three left the restaurant before Ms. Chase, so they could not verify when she left.  We estimate that it typically takes about 15 to 20 minutes to consume a drink.  Adding to that the 20-minute travel time to the Conference, it is unlikely Ms. Chase arrived at the Working Group session prior to 1310.  As Mr. Lopez testified, Ms. Chase was not in the Working Group at 1400 when he called on her to assist him; however, she was present at the panelists' table after the break at 1440.  Mrs. Cranston stated Ms. Chase was not in the conference room prior to the break at approximately 1440.  She and Mr. Lopez established that Ms. Chase was present at the panelist's table at approximately 1440.  Ms. Collins, on the other hand, could not recall seeing Ms. Chase until 1430 and was unable to provide names of attendees who could corroborate Ms. Chase's presence.  

2.  Ms. Chase appeared very nervous when we asked her when she returned to the conference.  She claimed to have arrived a little late but was present for most of the afternoon session except when she went to the ladies room.  She was unable to maintain eye contact during the interview and provided evasive answers to direct questions.  Based on her nervous demeanor, we question her veracity and credibility.    

3.  Mr. Lopez, Mr. Papas, Ms. Sanchez and Mrs. Cranston are neutral third parties, and provided forthright, consistent testimony.  Based on their testimony, we conclude that while it is possible Ms. Chase returned sometime around 1320 or 1330, it is improbable.

4.  According to JER § 2635.705, employees are required to use official time to perform official duties.  Mr. Rutkowski directed Ms. Chase to participate in the Working Group on 3 March at 1300.  The evidence established she failed to arrive for the afternoon conference session (her official place of duty) until about 1430.  Accordingly, we conclude that Ms. Chase did not attend the entire C4I Network Users Working Group session of the Conference, as required, on the afternoon of 3 March 1999 and violated the JER.

(c) Conclusion.  Based on the evidence, the allegation that Ms. Sylvia Chase was not at her place of official duty from 1300 to 1430 on 3 March 1999 is substantiated.

(d) Recommendations.  Take appropriate administrative action to hold Ms. Chase accountable.

(5) Fifth allegation/issue (developed during the investigation).  That Ms. Chase returned from San Diego to Dulles vice Reagan-National Airport and incurred an additional cost for the flight change, fare increase, and ground transportation at government expense, for which she improperly claimed reimbursement on her travel voucher dated 7 March 1999, in violation of JTR, DoD Civilian Personnel, Chapter 2 – Transportation Modes, Accommodations, Transportation Requests, Baggage and Mileage Rates.  

(a) Facts  

1.  Ms. Chase’s travel voucher showed she changed her return flight reservations from San Diego and flew into Dulles vice Reagan-National Airport, as originally planned.  She stated she elected to change her reservations because the San Diego/Dulles Airport flight is a direct flight and saves approximately two hours en route flying time.  Ms. Chase commented that the San Diego/Dulles Airport flight was not authorized on her orders.

2.  Ms. Chase called the Scheduled Airlines Travel Office (SATO) Help Desk and changed her flight.  The penalty fee to change the reservation was $50.00, and the fare increase associated with the direct flight was $65.00, both at government expense.

3.  The San Diego to Reagan-National Airport flight is a government-contracted flight at a lower rate.  This flight has a stopover in Chicago before proceeding to Reagan-National Airport, which extends the total elapsed en route time, including time zone changes, to approximately ten and one-half hours.  The San Diego/Dulles Airport flight is not a government contract flight and costs $65.00 more.  This is a direct flight and the total en route time is approximately seven and one-half hours.

4.  Ms. Lisa Ponds, SATO, stated in accordance with 2 JTR they are required to book employees on government TDY using government contract flights, if available, via the closest servicing airports.  In this specific case, SATO was required to route Ms. Chase from San Diego to Reagan-National Airport on a government contract flight.  Ms. Ponds added that an employee could use the San Diego to Dulles direct flight at government expense if it was authorized on their orders and required for official business.  This would require the individual to submit a high cost statement to their command to justify the increased costs.  Ms. Ponds stated that any employee could elect to use any flight if they paid the additional increased fare and did not charge the government.

5.  On arrival, Ms. Chase took Washington-Flyer ground transportation at a cost of $16.00 from Dulles to Reagan-National Airport, where her car was parked.  Under 2 JTR § C1058, "...Excess cost, circuitous routes, delays or luxury accommodations that are unnecessary or unjustified are the employee’s financial responsibility."  

6.  Ms. Chase’s travel voucher showed she requested reimbursement for the additional fees incurred and the DFAS Travel Voucher Summary verified she was reimbursed $131.00.

7.  Joint Travel Regulations, Volume 2, (2 JTR) DoD Civilian Personnel, effective 1 Aug 98, Chapter 2 – Transportation Modes, Accommodations, Transportation Requests, Baggage and Mileage Rates, § C2001A under subsection, Selecting Method of Transportation To Be Used, states, in part:  "Except as noted herein, the use of discount fares offered by contract air carriers between certain cities (city-pairs) is advantageous to the Government and is mandatory for authorized air travel between those city-pairs.  If a contract city-pair fare is not available, the least expensive unrestricted fare ... should be used." 

8.  2 JTR § C2001A under subsection, Traveler's Cost Liability When Selected Method not Used, states, in part:  "The employee shall use the method of transportation administratively authorized/approved by the DoD component concerned as most advantageous to the Government.  Any additional cost resulting from the use of a method of transportation other than specifically authorized/approved, or required by regulation, e.g., contract air service, is the employee's responsibility."

(b) Discussion  

1.  Ms. Chase stated she changed her reservations for the return portion of her flight on 4-5 March 1999 because it was shorter in duration knowing it was a non-contract flight and was not authorized on her travel orders.

2.  2 JTR § C2001A requires employees on TDY orders to use government contract airline flights, unless specified on their orders, or the employee pays the increased costs associated with the flight change and higher fare.

3.  If an employee elects to use a non-contract flight for travel, it is the employee's responsibility to pay any additional costs.

4.  Accordingly, we concluded her claim for reimbursement of $115.00 for the change in her air reservation and increased fare was in violation of 2 JTR § C2001A.

5.  Moreover, we also concluded the expense of $16.00 for ground transportation between Dulles and Reagan-National Airports was not authorized as part of her official travel and circuitous in accordance with 2 JTR § C1058.

(c) Conclusion.  Based on the evidence, the allegation that Ms. Sylvia Chase improperly claimed $131.00 on her travel voucher is substantiated.

(d) Recommendation.  Take appropriate action to require Ms. Chase to reimburse the government for the $131.00 in related travel expenses and administrative action to hold her accountable for violating 2 JTR.

(6) Sixth allegation/issue (developed during the investigation).  That Ms. Chase was improperly credited vice charged 8 hours of compensatory time on 10 March 1999, in violation of COMNAVAIRSYSCOMINST 3342.2b, Employee Time and Attendance, 18 January 1997.

(a) Facts
1.  COMNAVAIRSYSCOMINST 3342.2b states, "Employees must document timecards when using compensatory time off in the same manner as sick or annual leave.  Timekeepers will ensure compensatory time is correctly credited and charged."    

2.  An approved leave slip in the timekeeping records showed Ms. Chase was scheduled to use 8 credit hours on 10 March 1999 but her timecard showed she was credited with 8 hours that day.  

3.  Ms. Kathy Conaway, the timekeeper, stated:  COMNAVAIRSYSCOM employees who earn compensatory time submit NAVCOMPT Form 2282, Overtime/Compensatory Time Request and Authorization, signed by their supervisor to be credited with time off.  She is responsible for ensuring the compensatory time is properly documented in the pay/leave records.  Ms. Chase properly completed the form, was authorized by her supervisor, and forwarded the request to her.  Ms. Chase used her compensatory time off on 11 March 1999.  Ms. Conaway acknowledged she mistakenly credited the time sheet with 8 hours on 10 March 1999 instead of charging Ms. Chase 8 hours.  Upon recognizing her error, she immediately notified Ms. Chase and corrected the error in the database.  Based on her recommendation, the command approved a new method of ensuring compensatory time is properly documented to avoid future mistakes.

4.  Ms. Chase stated during her interview that she was not aware of the mistake until Ms. Conaway brought it to her attention.  Ms. Conaway assured her it was not her fault and that she would correct the problem.    

(b) Discussion  

1.  A review of Ms. Chase's timecard showed that she used 8 hours compensatory time and was incorrectly credited 8 hours for 10 March 1999.

2.  Ms. Conaway, the timekeeper, stated she made the error on the timesheets and incorrectly credited Ms. Chase with 8 hours compensatory time instead of charging her 8 hours, in violation of COMNAVAIRSYSCOMINST 3342.2b, Employee Time and Attendance.  She made the correction on the timekeeping records once the error was brought to her attention.

(c) Conclusion.  Based on the evidence, the allegation that Ms. Chase was improperly credited vice charged with 8 hours of compensatory time on 10 March 1999, is substantiated.

(d) Recommendation.  No further action is necessary.  Ms. Conaway corrected the error in the timekeeping records.  She subsequently recommended an improved method of documenting compensatory time, which was approved by the command, and is now in effect. 

4.  CRIMINAL OR REGULATORY VIOLATIONS SUBSTANTIATED: 

a.  DoD Instruction 5500.7-R, Joint Ethics Regulation (JER), August 30, 1993, Chapter 2, Use of official time, 

b.  JOINT TRAVEL REGULATIONS, VOLUME 2, (2 JTR) DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE CIVILIAN PERSONNEL, effective 1 Aug 98, CHAPTER 2 - TRANSPORTATION MODES, ACCOMMODATIONS, TRANSPORTATION REQUESTS, BAGGAGE AND MILEAGE RATES (Selecting Method of Transportation To Be Used and Traveler's Cost Liability When Selected Method not Used),

c.  Commander, Naval Air Systems Command Instruction (COMNAVAIRSYSCOMINST) 3342.2b, 18 January 1997, Employee Time and Attendance.

5.  DISPOSITION:  Forwarded to Commander, Naval Air Systems Command for appropriate action.

6.  SECURITY CLASSIFICATION OF INFORMATION:  UNCLASSIFIED

7.  LOCATION OF FIELD WORKING PAPERS AND FILES:

Naval Air Systems Command

Office of the Inspector General

Attn: AIR-00G 

22145 Arnold Circle, Unit #7

Bldg 404, Suite 100


Patuxent River, MD 20670-1541
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